From: Michael [erodan@werple.net]

Sent: Thursday, 28 March 2002 12:40 PM

To: legcon.sen@aph.gov.au

Subject: Mig Leg Amendment Bill (No 2) 2002

Dear Senators,

As a specialist immigration lawyer with about 25 years experience in this area, I wish to make a very short submission to the Committee on the provisions of the above bill as it relates to the removal of the ability of applicants who are subject to section 48 of the Act to travel overseas on bridging visas and lodge applications there.  

The process is known in Canada as the "Buffalo shuffle" as it is Buffalo in the USA where applicants in Canada go to lodge visa applications that can only be lodged off-shore.  In Australia, Immigration lawyers usually call it the "Auckland shuffle" as this is the cheapest and closest destination outside the country for those in Sydney and Melbourne. 

I regard the process as one of the few safety valves in the Immigration law pressure cooker which, to my observation, produces more angry and disgruntled applicants every day.

Many clients come to me because they have lodged the wrong visa for their circumstances and they are subject to section 48 (ie they cannot lodge another visa application whilst they remain in Australia).  For example, I currently act for a former test cricketer who is here on a sports visa and his Australian club sought advice from DIMA on the appropriate permanent visa for his circumstances.  They were negligently advised by counter staff at DIMA that they should lodge an ENS visa for him.  In fact the club could only offer him 24 hours a week employment and the club's major sponsor was employing him for the rest of the working week.  As this did not constitute "full time" employment he was refused the ENS visa when he applied.  When the club officials came to see me, it was very clear that the man would have succeeded if he had applied for a "distinguished talent" visa.  Due to complete bloody mindedness on the part of DIMA some yers ago, the regulations were amended to remove the ability of officers (and the MRT) to also consider an ENS applicant for a distinguished talent visa under the same visa class.  He is now subject to section 48 of the Act (having been refuse the ENS visa) and he is faced with having to leave Australia and apply for a distinguished talent visa overseas and wait until it is processed, with all the disruption associated with that for the club and its cricketing programs etc. 

It is very apparent to me (from what my clients tell me) that the sheer complexity of the Migration Regulations and the poor advice offered by counter staff at Immigration and by migration agents, is a direct cause of a lot of my client's complaints and the section 48 "predicament" they find themselves in.  However, I cannot blame counter staff or other agents too much as it is very clear that the unnecessary complexity of the Migration Regulations is the main culprit here. One of the tragedies in this area id the failure of senior DIMA officers to get a proper understanding of their own laws and realise the sheer idiocy of continuing the current system rather than redesigning it (they only have to look at the CAAIP Model Migration Bill to see the way in which codification should have been carried out).

In my view, it would be highly counter productive to remove the ability of people to remedy the results of poor visa application choices due to complex regulations etc just so as to catch the few people whom some DIMA officers suspect, are using the bridging B visa facility to gain an unfair advantage (ie to remain in Australia whilst their overseas application is being processed).  

To take the cricketer as an example, DIMA could hardly say that he would be trying to gain an unfair advantage if he did an "Auckland shuffle", simply because, having been given negligent advice by them, his club is trying to keep him in Australia so they can ensure that their junior and senior teams are not disrupted in their training.  

I think that stopping the ability of some applicants to carry out self help by doing an "Auckland shuffle", is going to create an even bigger pressure cooker of disgruntled applicants and push more and more of them up to the Ministerial stage (eg under section 351 etc) to try to remedy errors that the Regulations themselves should be able to remedy if they were not so prescriptive and badly designed.  

Of course, it may have a beneficial effect of providing the final proof that the Migration Regulations are truly unworkable.
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